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1  {Witness Sworn.)

2  MS. BETHUNE: This is the Sworn

3  Statement of Rhonda Crawford taken in relation

4  to Commission Number 2016IN03486.

5  My name is Shelley Bethune and I

6  am the attorney for the Administrator.

7  Miss Crawford has appeared pursuant to

8  agreement and is appearing with counsel, George

9  Collins, and Adrian Vuckovich.

10 This statement is being taken

11 pursuant to the Illinois Code of Civil

12 Procedure, the Supreme Court Rules and the

13 rules of the ARDC.

14 RHONDA CRAWFORD,

15 having been first duly sworn, was examined and

16 testified as follows:

17 EXAMINATION

18 BY MS. BETHUNE:

19 Q. Miss Crawford, if at any time you

20 do not hear me or understand my question,

21 please let know and I'll either repeat it or

22 rephrase it; is that fair?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. Miss Crawford, what documents, if
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1  any, have you reviewed in preparation for this

2  statement?

3  A. I received a subpoena that had

4  statements from Judge Laws, Lou Panici, Jr., a

5  Cook County Sheriff's deputy and a court clerk.

6  And there were also some tickets.

7  Q. Is that subpoena that you

8  mentioned the subpoena you received from the

9  ARDC?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. And what tickets are you referring

12 to?

13 A. There were traffic tickets that I

14 reviewed.

15 Q. Those were included with the

16 subpoena?

17 A. I don't know if they were with the

18 subpoena, but my attorney had some traffic

19 tickets.

20 Q. So your attorney gave you those

21 tickets?

22 A. I looked at them, but he didn't

23 give them to me.

24 Q. All right. And have you talked to
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1  anyone regarding the statement or the fact that

2  it's taking place other than your attorney?

3  A. No.

4  Q. What is your —

5  A. Well, we did a press conference

6  today.

7  Q. All right.

8  A. I did not mention that the

9  statement was taking place today, but we did

10 mention that there was an ARDC investigation.

11 Q. And who was the press conference

12 with?

13 A. My attorney, Victor Henderson, and

14 various media outlets.

15 Q. Do you know which media outlets

16 there were?

17 A. I don't know all of them. I do

18 know that Channel 9, Channel 7, SunTimes,

19 Tribune.

20 Q. What time was this statement?

21 A. 10:30 this morning.

22 Q. And did you discuss with your

23 attorney, Victor Henderson, that this statement

24 was happening today?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. What is your current home address?

3 A. 363 Hoxie Avenue, Calumet City,

4 Illinois 60409.

5 Q. How long have you lived there?

6 A. Since 1999.

7 Q. Who do you live with at that

8 address?

9 A. Myself.

10 Q. Are you married?

11 A. No.

12 Q. Are you divorced?

13 A. No.

14 Q. Do you have any children?

15 A. No.

16 Q. And when did you first become

17 licensed to practice law in Illinois?

18 A. 2003. November of 2003.

19 Q. Are you or were you licensed in

20 any other states?

21 A. No, I don't think I ever applied

22 for reciprocity anywhere, so no, I didn't get

23 any other licenses.

24 Q. Are you admitted to practice in
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1  any federal jurisdictions?

2  A. Early on I believe I got licensed

3  here, but I've never done any federal work.

4  But not any other jurisdictions.

5  Q. When you say "here," do you mean

6  the Northern District of Illinois?

7  A. Yes.

8  Q. Have you been a defendant or a

9  respondent in any civil litigation in the last

10 five years?

11 A. No.

12 Q. Where did you go to law school?

13 A. Chicago Kent College of Law.

14 Q. And what year did you attend?

15 A. 2000 to 2003.

16 Q. Is there any specific area of law

17 that you focused on?

18 A. Well, I did receive a certificate

19 in litigation and alternative dispute

20 resolution.

21 Q. And where did you go to undergrad?

22 A. I went to several schools, but I

23 graduated from Chicago State University.

24 Q. Could you give me a time line of
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1  -- including the other schools?

2  A. Yes. I started — I went to

3  Xavier University of Louisiana my first year,

4  which was 1989 to 1990. I transferred to the

5  University of Illinois at Chicago in 1990

6  until, I believe, January of '93, when I went

7  to Chicago State, and I graduated in 1996.

8  Q. Okay. Why did you transfer from

9  Xavier to the University of Illinois in

10 Chicago?

11 A. Financial reasons.

12 Q. How about from University of

13 Illinois to Chicago State University?

14 A. I applied to the nursing program

15 and was not accepted, and I left to go to

16 Chicago State to attend their nursing program.

17 Q. You applied to the University of

18 Illinois at Chicago's nursing program and

19 that's the one you were not accepted to?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. And so what was your degree that

22 you graduated with?

23 A. Bachelor of science in nursing.

24 Q. And do you have an active nursing
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1  license now?

2  A. It's not active.

3  Q. When did it become inactive?

4  A. I'm not sure of the exact date.

5  Maybe 2005.

6  Q. Why did it become inactive?

7  A. I had to pay -- the date may not

8  be right. I did maintain it for a few years

9  after law school, but in addition to having to

10 pay to renew the license, they began to require

11 some additional classes in order to renew, and

12 I chose not to do that, in addition to what I

13 had to do to maintain the law license.

14 Q. Okay. Did you ever work as a

15 nurse?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. And what years were you actively

18 working as a nurse?

19 A. From 1996 until I started law

20 school in 2000.

21 Q. And where did you work?

22 A. Christ, Rush, and Northwestern.

23 Q. Is that — is Christ a hospital?

24 A. Yes. Christ Hospital and Medical
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1  Center in Oak Lawn, Rush University Medical

2  Center, and Northwestern Memorial Hospital.

3  Q. Can you give me the dates that you

4  worked at each of those places?

5  A. I worked at Christ from 1996, I

6  believe around November of 1996 until, I

7  believe, January of 1999. And then I worked at

8  Rush from January of '99 until June...

9  Q. You can give me an approximate

10 time.

11 A. I'm sorry. I didn't look back at

12 my resume before we started. January to June,

13 I believe, of 1999. And then I went to

14 Northwestern, and I worked there until I left

15 to go to law school in August of 2000.

16 Q. Why did you leave from Christ

17 Hospital in 1999?

18 A. I wanted to do something

19 outpatient instead of working on the patient

20 care unit that I was working on. And I

21 received a job offer for a position at

22 Northwestern — I'm sorry, at Rush working for

23 their cardiology department doing procedures,

24 as opposed to a patient care unit.
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1  Q. Okay. And why did you leave from

2  Rush University to go to Northwestern?

3  A. I thought at the time that Rush

4  was having some financial problems in their

5  cardiology department where I worked. And I'm

6  a single person, I couldn't afford to be out of

7  work, so I began to look for another job when I

8  began to believe they had some financial

9  problems.

10 Q. Okay. Were you ever the subject

11 of disciplinary action with respect to your

12 nursing license?

13 A. No.

14 Q. Other than your law and nursing

15 licenses, do you have any other professional

16 licenses?

17 A. No.

18 Q. Have you received any other type

19 of graduate education other than law school?

20 A. No.

21 Q. All right. We're going to talk

22 about your employment history since you've been

23 admitted to practice in Illinois.

24 So could you give me a time line.
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1  starting with your first employment after you

2  were admitted to practice?

3  A. I worked for the Cook County

4  State's Attorney's Office.

5  Q. Could you include some dates, too?

6  A. Sure.

7  Q. Thank you.

8  A. From August of 2003 to June of

9  2004 I worked for the criminal appeals

10 division. June of 2004 I went to work for

11 Anesi Ozmon Rodin Novak & Kohen. I stayed

12 there for approximately nine months.

13 And I did some contract work and

14 some independent work doing real estate

15 closings and some small business litigation

16 from sometime in 2005 until 2011.

17 August 2011 I went to work for the

18 Office of the Chief Judge and I worked there

19 until August of 2016.

20 Q. Why did you leave the State's

21 Attorney's Office?

22 A. I was interested in doing medical

23 malpractice litigation, and a position came up

24 at our firm that did plaintiffs' personal
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1  injury. Part of the practice was medical

2  malpractice.

3  Q. Okay. And that would be the Anesi

4  Ozmon firm that you mentioned?

5  A. Yes.

6  Q. So you mentioned that you did some

7  contract work and real estate closing, but you

8  also did med/mal; is that what you're saying?

9  A. No, the Anesi Ozmon did med/mal.

10 Q. So what type of law did you

11 practice while you were there?

12 A. Plaintiffs' personal injury. They

13 mostly did construction negligence cases, and

14 they handled some medical malpractice cases,

15 motor vehicle cases.

16 Q. Maybe I misunderstood you because

17 I thought you said that you were doing some

18 real estate closings while you were working

19 there.

20 A. No, not while I was working there.

21 After I left there.

22 Q. Okay. So where did you go after

23 you left there?

24 A. I did contract work for some
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1  agencies, various agencies. And I did a few

2  real estate closings during that time.

3  Q. I*m sorry. I misunderstood you.

4  And why did you leave the Anesi

5  Law Firm?

6  A. I didn't feel like the firm was

7  the right fit for me.

8  Q. Do you remember the name of the

9  agency that you worked for where you did the

10 contract work?

11 A. I don't. I worked for several of

12 them. I don't remember.

13 Q. Okay. And you did that for how

14 many years?

15 A. Five or six. It — not

16 continuously. On and off.

17 Q. And so after you did the contract

18 work, that's when you went to the Office of the

19 Chief Judge?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. And that was in 20 —

22 A. '11.

23 Q. '11. All right. How did you come

24 to find out about a position that was open at
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1  the Office of the Chief Judge?

2  A. I did not know that they had an

3  opening. I just sent in my resume and

4  eventually they called me in for an interview.

5  Q. All right. And who interviewed

6  you?

7  A. I believe it was Bruce Wisniewski.

8  I know that he was in charge of HR when I

9  started, but I'm not sure if he was the person

10 who interviewed me when I went in for the

11 interview, but I believe he was.

12 Q. Did you have one interview or

13 rounds of interviews?

14 A. One interview.

15 Q. And who hired you?

16 A. Judge Evans.

17 Q. So what was your position and

18 title when you started working?

19 A. Law clerk slash staff attorney.

20 They used both terms.

21 Q. And what were your job duties as a

22 law clerk?

23 A. Well, from August 2011 until late

24 2015 I worked directly for Judge Evans, so I

WASHINGTON COURT REPORTING

312-286-7360

I2F SUBMITTED - 1799919024 - WMUCHMANARDC - 10/13/2016 04:27:03 PM  DOCUMENT ACCEPTED ON: 10/13/2016 04:34:12 PM

M.R.28341



9/22/2016

Page 17

1 mostly did research and writing for him, but

2 any assignments that he gave me I was

3 responsible for.

4 Q. So were you working directly with

5 Judge Evans?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. And did you work with any other

8 judges there?

9 A. I didn't do any assignments for

10 any other judges.

11 Q. How was your work evaluated?

12 A. By Judge Evans. I reported

13 directly to him.

14 Q. And did you have an annual review

15 or anything like that —

16 A. No.

17 Q. — while you were there?

18 A. No, but he would give me feedback.

19 Q. On each individual assignment?

20 A. Not every one. I gave him lots of

21 things, assignments, but I did not get feedback

22 on everything that I did. But any feedback I

23 got was directly from him.

24 Q. Did you have any problems with
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1  members of the staff while you were working at

2  that office?

3  A. Maybe some personality conflicts,

4  but nothing that I would call —

5  Q. Could you elaborate on that a

6  little bit for me?

7  A. He had another staff attorney who

8  I didn't particularly get along with. She quit

9  at some point.

10 MS. BETHUNE:If we could just —

11 if we could just put on the record that Wendy

12 Muchman is now present.

13 MS. MUCHMAN: My apologies.

14 BY MS. BETHUNE:

15 Q. And who was this other staff

16 attorney?

17 A. Sharon Goss.

18 Q. Could you spell the last name if

19 you're able?

20 A. G-o-s-s.

21 Q. And you had some personality

22 conflicts with her you said?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. How long was she working there?
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1 A. Prior to my working there or --

2 Q. If you know?

3 A. I don * t know.

4 Q. And when did she leave?

5 A. I don't remember.

6 Q. But she left before you did?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. Okay. Did anything come of that

9 with HR?

10 A. No.

11 Q. Okay. Was there anything in

12 particular that you can remember regarding the

13 personality conflicts?

14 A. We had a verbal disagreement once.

15 Q. What was that about?

16 A. I was upset that Judge Evans had

17 given an assignment for several of us to work

18 on and I was not included in the -- in the

19 process.

20 Q. All right. And I take it that

21 Miss Goss was assigned?

22 A. Well, we were all assigned, but

23 when they were emailing the documents they were

24 not sent to me to give my input.
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1  Q. And who failed to send you the

2  documents?

3  A. The other attorneys who were

4  assigned. Steve, I can't remember his last,

5  name, the acting legal research director.

6  Steve and Laura — I can't think of her last

7  name. And Sharon.

8  Q. Okay. And so why did you approach

9  Sharon verbally about this as opposed to

10 everyone else on the email chain?

11 A. Well, Steve was there. I actually

12 approached both of them and he just addressed

13 my concerns, but she got angry. And Laura

14 wasn't there.

15 Q. And so what became of this verbal

16 disagreement?

17 A. Nothing. Nothing.

18 Q. Did you have to work with

19 Miss Goss again after that?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. And how was that?

22 A. It was okay. We didn't socialize,

23 but we did our jobs.

24 Q. So in May of 2015 you moved to
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1  Markham; is that right?

2  A. Yes.

3  Q. Why did you move to Markham?

4  A. I was told that they needed some

5  additional assistants. They just had one staff

6  attorney who worked there part-time, and she

7  split her time between the Markham courthouse,

8  and I believe it was Maywood. And they were

9  requesting some additional assistance.

10 Q. So you did not request to be

11 transferred?

12 A. No.

13 Q. And would you consider that to be

14 a lateral move or was that a promotion or a

15 demotion, do you know?

16 A. I considered it a lateral move.

17 Q. Was there any change in salary?

18 A. No.

19 Q. And what was your job title when

20 you moved to Markham?

21 A. Staff attorney.

22 Q. Were you assigned to any

23 particular judge in Markham?

24 A. Yes. Judge laws, she is the
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1  presiding judge, but I was also told to do work

2  for any of the judges when I wasn't busy doing

3  work for Judge Laws.

4  Q. And so what, exactly, were your

5  job duties in Markham?

6  A. It was mostly research and

7  writing. I set up a couple of LexisNexis

8  training classes for the judges. Anything that

9  they asked for assistance on I did.

10 Q. And when you got an assignment

11 from a judge other than Judge Laws, did you

12 have to have that approved by Judge Laws?

13 A. No, but if she needed something

14 done, her work took precedence over theirs.

15 And I would just fit everything into my

16 schedule if I needed to.

17 Q. How were you given assignments

18 typically?

19 A. It varied depending on the judge.

20 Most of the time they would come to my office

21 and hand me whatever they wanted me to do.

22 Sometimes they put things in my mailbox.

23 Sometimes they called me and told me over the

24 phone what they wanted, or called me and told
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1  me to come to their chambers.

2  Q. Where was your office? Did you

3  have an office?

4  A. I did. It was on the second floor

5  of the Markham courthouse.

6  Q. Where was that in relation to the

7  courtrooms?

8  A. It was behind one of the

9  courtrooms, behind courtroom 205. The room

10 number was 205C.

11 Q. And was your work evaluated at

12 Markham?

13 A. 1 didn't receive any annual

14 evaluations, just by the individual judges,

15 whoever 1 was doing work for.

16 Q. If you ever had any questions at

17 Markham who would you ask for help?

18 A. It depends on the question, but

19 anybody. Everybody helped. The judges were

20 pretty open, had an open door policy.

21 Q. So you would mainly go to other

22 judges or the judge that gave you the

23 assignment?

24 A. Yes.
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1  Q. Did you get along with other staff

2  attorneys there?

3  A. There was only one. Yes, I did.

4  She left earlier this year, but yeah, we got

5  along.

6  Q. Who was that?

7  A. Michelle. I can't think of her

8  last name. I'm sorry.

9  Q. That's okay. She left earlier

10 this year you said?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. And did you ever get any

13 promotions or salary increases throughout your

14 entire time at the Office of the Chief Judge?

15 A. I never received a promotion. My

16 salary increased a little bit. I don't know

17 when that happened, though. I wasn't told it

18 was happening, just given an increase.

19 I don't know if it was an annual

20 thing that they did or — I know that at some

21 point Judge Laws requested a salary increase

22 for me, but I don't know if I received the

23 increase then, but at some point my salary did

24 increase.
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1  Q. Did anyone ever complain about

2  your work or your conduct while you were at the

3  Office of the Chief Judge?

4  A. No.

5  Q. Did you work at the Office of the

6  Chief Judge prior to becoming a licensed

7  attorney?

8  A. I — when I was in law school I

9  worked in the summer as a law clerk, and that

10 was under the umbrella of the chief judge.

11 Q. And can you tell me what years you

12 worked there?

13 A. Sure. It was summer of 2001 and

14 2002, so maybe from May to August of those

15 years.

16 Q. And what did you do from May to

17 August of 2001?

18 A. Research and writing.

19 Q. At what location?

20 A. Daley Center. I worked for Judge

21 Evans. He was, at the time, the Presiding

22 Judge of the Law Division.

23 Q. So were you like, a law clerk or

24 an extern?
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1  A. I was a law clerk. I was paid.

2  Q. How much were you paid?

3  A. I don't remember. Maybe — I

4  don't know, 10 or $12 an hour.

5  Q. Do you remember how you found out

6  about that position?

7  A. Yes. I talked to one of the

8  judges and she told me that they had a summer

9  program. And there was a -- like an

10 information session about the program at some

11 point during the school year and I went to it

12 and applied.

13 Q. Do you remember what judge you

14 talked to?

15 A. No, I'm sorry. It was a long time

16 ago.

17 Q And you said you worked for Judge

18 Evans?

19 A. In the summer of 2001.

20 Q. Did you do work that was given —

21 did he give you work or did other judges give

22 you work as well?

23 A. He did. I was assigned to him.

24 It was me and one other student for that
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1 summer.

2 Q. So how about summer of 2002?

3 A. I worked for Judge Maddux, who was

4 the Presiding Judge of the Law Division that

5 summer.

6 Q. And so how did you get that

7 position?

8 A. The same program.

9 Q. Same salary or pay, I should say?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. Hourly. And so Judge Maddux, was

12 he the only one that assigned you work?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. And your job duties were research

15 and writing7

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. So was it your goal when you were

18 graduating from law school to go back to work

19 for the Office of the Chief Judge?

20 A. I wouldn't say it was my goal

21 initially, but I enjoyed working for the chief

22 judge's office.

23 Q. And why did you decide to run for

24 judge?
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1  A. It was something that I had always

2  wanted to do. I had worked for the Court and

3  respected a lot of the judges that I worked

4  for.

5  Q. Okay. This was your first time

6  running for judge?

7  A. Yes.

8  Q. Who were your opponents in the

9  primary?

10 A. Anthony Simpkins and Lisa

11 Copeland.

12 Q. Could you spell Lisa's last name?

13 A. I believe it is C-o-p-e-l-a-n-d.

14 Q. Who funded your campaign?

15 A. I received a few small donations,

16 but I mostly funded it.

17 Q. So I want to go back to your time

18 at the Office of the Chief Judge after you were

19 licensed as an attorney.

20 Did you know Judge Valerie Turner

21 prior to beginning work at Markham?

22 A. No.

23 Q. Could you describe any personal

24 relationship that you had with her, if any?
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1  A. None.

2  Q. So you never saw her outside of

3  work?

4  A. No.

5  Q. Could you describe your

6  professional relationship with Judge Turner?

7  A. I had never done any assignments

8  for her. I introduced myself to her when I was

9  assigned to the courthouse.

10 And I set up a couple of Lexis

11 training sessions for the judges, and so I went

12 around to all of the judges to discuss their

13 availability based on dates that the Lexis

14 trainer could come out to try to find the most

15 convenient time for the session to take place.

16 Once the date was set, I went

17 around to the judges to let them know when the

18 date was going to be and to ask them if they

19 would be able to attend. And afterwards, I

20 went around to all the judges to get their

21 feedback on whether the class was beneficial,

22 if they had any feedback.

23 And there was a second Lexis class

24 that was set up some months later, and I went
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1  back to all of the judges to find out if they

2  were unable to attend the first class, if they

3  would be able to attend the second session.

4  Also for those who did the first class if they

5  wanted to come for a refresher.

6  And then there was a second class

7  on that same day with some more advanced

8  information, so I gave them the information

9  about the class,

10 That was, besides just seeing

11 Judge Turner in the hallways, that was really

12 my only interaction.

13 Q. When were these Lexis trainings

14 set up?

15 A. I don't remember the dates.

16 Q. Can you give me an approximate?

17 A. Sure. Late 2015.

18 Q. Was that the first one?

19 A. Yes. And the second one may have

20 been earlier this year. January or February of

21 this year.

22 Q. Did Judge Turner attend either one

23 of those?

24 A. I don't remember.
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1  Q. Did she give you any feedback?

2  A. I don't remember.

3  Q. All right. So I want to move into

4  August 11th, 2016.

5  A. Okay.

6  Q. Can you tell me what happened on

7  that day?

8  A. Sure. I was shadowing with Judge

9  Turner in Courtroom 098. I observed the

10 morning call, took notes. And after the

11 morning call I looked at the tickets to see

12 what she wrote for her rulings.

13 And at the 1:00 o'clock call,

14 again, I was just there observing. And when

15 she got ready to do the last three tickets on

16 the call she turned to — she took off her robe

17 and handed it to me and said, "Put this on."

18 And then she told me to step up.

19 And she got out of the chair and turned the

20 chair for me to sit down. She stood next to me

21 and she handed me a — she took the ticket from

22 the clerk. The ticket was actually a motion

23 with two tickets attached.

24 She turned to the second ticket
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1  and she said. This is just a driver's license.

2  And I asked the defendant if he had his

3  driver's license. He handed it to the village

4  attorney. The village attorney said that the

5  driver's license was valid, to Motion City,

6  which meant to dismiss it.

7  Judge Turner took his

8  recommendation to dismiss the ticket and she

9  told me to write "Motion City" on the back of

10 the ticket. And then she turned to the first

11 ticket and she said. This is a vehicle

12 registration. And I said. Sir, do you have

13 your — I think she actually said, "Do you have

14 your vehicle registration"?

15 And he handed documents to the

16 village attorney. It wasn't actually a vehicle

17 registration. He didn't have it, but he said

18 he had sold the vehicle and he had a title for

19 a new vehicle. They had a conversation.

20 MS. MUCHMAN: Who is "They."

21 THE WITNESS: The village attorney

22 and the defendant. And the village attorney

23 said that he would accept the documents, and

24 indicated that he wanted to dismiss the
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1  tickets.

2  And Judge Turner said, "Motion

3  City," and I wrote that on the ticket and

4  handed it back to her. She looked at it,

5  handed it to the clerk.

6  And she took the next ticket and

7  she told me it was a — an insurance. I asked

8  the defendant if he had his insurance card. He

9  didn't have an insurance card for that date,

10 and the village attorney recommended that he

11 get another date to come in. And Judge Turner

12 said to me to give him -- she said to write,

13 motion defendant, and the date for the call.

14 So I wrote that.

15 And she took the ticket back, and

16 took the next ticket. And she looked at the

17 charge and she said, "Officer is not in court."

18 And I repeated what the judge said to the

19 defendant, "Officer is not in court."

20 And the village attorney said that

21 he wanted to get a continuance, or to get

22 another date. And Judge Turner said, "Motion

23 denied." I related that to the village

24 attorney that the motion is denied. And she
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1  told — Judge Turner said to write, "Motion

2  City."

3  And I said to the defendant that

4  the ticket was dismissed, handed it — I handed

5  Judge Turner back the ticket. She gave it to

6  the clerk. And then Judge Turner did the

7  remaining tickets, which were no shows.

8  BY MS. BETHUNE:

9  Q. Okay. So how did you come to be

10 in courtroom 098 that day?

11 A. I was shadowing all of the judges

12 and Judge Turner was the — with the exception

13 of a judge who had been recently transferred to

14 Markham, Judge Turner was the only Markham

15 judge who I had not shadowed. And she was

16 filling in for the judge that — the judge who

17 was normally assigned on that date, so I went

18 down there so I could watch her to learn what

19 — how she handled the courtroom.

20 Q. How many other judges had you

21 shadowed prior to shadowing Judge Turner on

22 August 11th?

23 A. All of the Markham judges except

24 one.
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1  Q. Who was that one?

2  A. Judge — I believe his name was

3  Judge Coughlin. He had recently gotten

4  transferred to Markham.

5  Q. Do you know how to spell his name?

6  A. I think its C-o-u-g-h-l-i-n.

7  Q. What's the time frame that you

8  were shadowing these judges?

9  A. March until August.

10 Q. 2016?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. That was because you won the

13 primary election?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. So what would you typically do

16 when you shadowed a judge?

17 A. I would just sit — it depended on

18 the courtroom where I sat, but I would usually

19 just sit on the side. If there was no court

20 reporter I might sit in the seat where the

21 court reporter would normally sit.

22 If there was a seat — an extra

23 seat next to the court clerk I would sit next

24 to the court clerk. Sometimes I would sit in
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1  the jury box, or sometimes I would just sit in

2  a chair along the wall. Or sometimes in the

3  back of the courtroom and just observe — and

4  observe to learn everything about procedure and

5  — procedural and substantive law.

6  Q. How did you decide which judge to

7  shadow on any particular day?

8  A. Sometimes it — if they had a busy

9  court call I might choose to go into that

10 courtroom depending on whatever else I was

11 working on. Or if someone had a — if they

12 said they had an interesting case, if they had

13 a sentencing or trial. It varied from day to

14 day.

15 Q. Did you have to get permission

16 before you shadowed a judge?

17 A. No, but I always went to the judge

18 beforehand and asked them if they were okay

19 with me following them for that day. And prior

20 to starting to shadow, my presiding judge gave

21 me permission, told me to go to all of the

22 courtrooms so I could see how the different

23 judges handled things.

24 Q. So Judge Laws, sometime in March,
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1  told you to start shadowing all the judges; is

2  that what you're saying?

3  A. I don't know if "shadowing" is the

4  word she used, but she said you should go to

5  all of the -- see how all of the judges run

6  their courtroom because they all do it a little

7  bit differently.

8  Q. So did you approach Judge Turner

9  prior to shadowing her on August 11th?

10 A. I did not. She came down a little

11 bit late.

12 Q. When would you typically ask a

13 judge if you could shadow them?

14 A. Usually right before. I would

15 usually go to their chambers and ask them.

16 Q. Okay.

17 A. Some of the judges I had shadowed

18 more than once, so I would just show up.

19 Q. And so with Judge Turner, and she

20 was late that day on August 11th, what did you

21 do?

22 A. I sat where the court reporter

23 might normally sit. I took notes. I always

24 carried a statute book. I would look at
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1  statutes. I was doing that that day.

2  Q. So after the morning call was

3  there any discussion with Judge Turner

4  regarding your shadowing of her that day?

5  A. No.

6  Q. So there was no discussion with

7  Judge Turner regarding your shadowing at all,

8  not even during a lunch break?

9  A. I didn't see her during lunch.

10 Q. And what time did the afternoon

11 call start?

12 A. 1:00 o'clock.

13 Q. So when you came back at — did

14 you leave the courtroom after the morning call?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. When you came back for the

17 afternoon call where did you sit?

18 A. Where the court reporter might sit

19 if there was a court reporter, but there was no

20 court reporter in that room.

21 Q. And so describe for me when Judge

22 Turner told you to put on her robe, describe

23 what you did.

24 A. I put it on. I put on the robe.
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1  Q. What were you thinking?

2  A. Judge Turner said to put on the

3  robe and that's all I was thinking.

4  Q. Were you visible?

5  A. Yes, I was in the front of the

6  courtroom.

7  Q. So she took off her robe and she

8  handed it to you in front of everybody in the

9  courtroom?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. And did that give you any concern?

12 A. No.

13 Q. Why not?

14 A. She was the judge.

15 Q. And you didn't think that perhaps

16 putting on a robe would mislead people in the

17 courtroom that you were, in fact, the judge?

18 A. No, we were at the end of the

19 call. The village attorney knew Judge Turner

20 very well. He had indicated earlier that day

21 that he worked with her frequently. I had met

22 him many times prior to that day. He was one

23 of the judge's sons that I worked for, so I had

24 met him many times.
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1  Q. And that is Mr. Panici?

2  A. Yes.

3  Q. And what about anybody else in the

4  courtroom? How many people were there?

5  A. The deputy and the court clerk,

6  who I had also met multiple times, many times.

7  And there were three parties who had been

8  sitting there through the whole call and saw

9  Judge Turner on the bench.

10 Q. Do you know if they witnessed you

11 put the robe on, you putting the robe on?

12 A. Yes, I — we were at the front of

13 the courtroom and she was elevated so they

14 could clearly see her.

15 Q. So you weren't concerned that

16 those three parties that you had never met

17 before or interacted with before might be

18 misled into thinking that you were, in fact,

19 the judge?

20 A. No, I thought it was clear, based

21 on how things were happening that she was

22 trying to teach me.

23 Q. Okay. So can you describe for me

24 when — where was Judge Turner standing after
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1  you sat down on the bench?

2  A. Right next to the chair to my

3  right.

4  Q. So she was standing. And you

5  mentioned that she was telling you some things

6  to say; is that right?

7  A. Yes. She was standing over me the

8  whole time handling the tickets. She was

9  standing between me and the court clerk, so

10 Judge Turner was to my right and the court

11 clerk was to her right. So she was telling me

12 what to say, what to do the whole time. She

13 never left the bench.

14 Q. When she was saying things was it

15 whispering to you?

16 A. No, she was speaking out and she

17 was sometimes talking to the defendants.

18 Q. So what did the clerk do during

19 this time?

20 A. Handed Judge Turner the tickets,

21 took the tickets back from Judge Turner. That

22 was it.

23 Q. Did anybody say anything after you

24 put the judge's robe on and sat down?
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1  A. No.

2  Q. Did anyone announce your name?

3  A. No.

4  Q. Was there any recess at all in the

5  court call?

6  A. None.

7  MS. BETHUNE: I'm handing you

8  Exhibit 1. We're marking this as Exhibit 1.

9  (Whereupon, Administrator's

10 Exhibit 1 was marked

11 for identification.)

12 BY MS. BETHUNE:

13 Q. Is this the first ticket that you

14 ruled on?

15 MS. MUCHMAN: We're talking about

16 Exhibit 1.

17 MR. COLLINS: Objection. She

18 didn't say she ruled on any tickets.

19 BY MS. BETHUNE:

20 Q. Is this the first ticket that you

21 looked at as you were sitting on the bench with

22 the judge's robe on?

23 A. I don't recognize this ticket.

24 Q. Okay.
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1  MS. MUCHMAN: Is there anything

2  that would refresh your memory? We're talking

3  about Exhibit 1 Bates stamp 1.

4  THE WITNESS: This handwriting is

5  not mine.

6  BY MS. MUCHMAN:

7  Q. Have you reviewed any documents

8  relating to August 11th?

9  A. Yes.

10 MS. MUCHMAN: Can you say for sure

11 whether this is one of the matters that was

12 called while you were wearing Judge Turner's

13 robe?

14 THE WITNESS: I can say for sure it

15 is not.

16 MS. MUCHMAN: What's the basis for

17 that?

18 THE WITNESS: There was no bond

19 forfeiture that came up. I'm looking at the

20 abbreviations on the second page, and this

21 ticket is from Calumet City. It was a Dolton

22 day.

23 And the ticket, the first ticket

24 wasn't an actual ticket. It was a motion with
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1  a printout from some tickets with the charges

2  on it. It wasn't an actual ticket. This is an

3  actual ticket.

4  BY MS. BETHUNE:

5  Q. If you turn to Bates stamp Page 3.

6  Is this one of the tickets that you looked at

7  while you were — that was called while you

8  were wearing Judge Turner's robe?

9  A. Can I go back to the first one? I

10 said it was a Calumet City ticket. I think

11 that's their address. I don't know where this

12 ticket is from, but I still know that there was

13 no bond forfeiture that came up.

14 Q. Okay.

15 A. I'm sorry.

16 Q. Going to Bates Stamp Page 3. Is

17 this one of the tickets that was called while

18 you were wearing Judge Turner's robe?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. Do you remember if this was the

21 first ticket?

22 A. It was not. It was the second

23 ticket.

24 Q. And how do you remember that this
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1  was one of the tickets?

2  A. I recognize my handwriting. I

3  remember that it was for no proof of insurance.

4  Q. Where do you recognize your

5  handwriting?

6  A. Next to Judge Turner's signature

7  where it says, "Motion defendant."

8  Q. Bates stamp Page 4?

9  A. Yes.

10 Q. So are you referring to

11 MD 10/26/16?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. So you wrote that?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. Do you know who wrote Judge

16 Turner's name on the left-hand column?

17 A. I did not. I don't know who wrote

18 it. I'm assuming that she did.

19 Q. Was that there when you looked at

20 this ticket?

21 A. No.

22 Q. So that got there sometime after

23 you wrote MD 10/26/16?

24 A. It may have been there before, but
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1  I don't remember seeing -- I don't remember if

2  her signature was already on the ticket or if

3  she put it on there afterward. I don't know if

4  she put it on there afterwards.

5  Q. So when this — did you call the

6  defendant to step up to the bench?

7  A. No, the clerk did. They stepped

8  up to the podium where the village attorney

9  was.

10 Q. Can you remind me, is this the --

11 what happened with this ticket?

12 A. The defendant did not have the

13 proof of insurance for the date of the ticket,

14 and the village attorney suggested to Judge

15 Turner that he come back on another date.

16 Q. Okay. And what happened?

17 A. Judge Turner said that he could

18 come back on October 26th.

19 Q. And you relayed that information?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. Verbally?

22 A. Yes. Well, I don't -- I don't

23 think I said anything. She told me to write

24 the date on the ticket. The village attorney
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1  may have told him the date to come back.

2  Q. So after you wrote the date on the

3  ticket on Bates stamp Page 4, what did you do?

4  A. Handed the ticket back to Judge

5  Turner.

6  Q. What did she do with it?

7  A. Looked at it and gave it to the

8  clerk.

9  Q. So you never said anything to the

10 village attorney?

11 A. I don't believe I did.

12 Q. If we could turn to Bates stamp

13 Page 5, please? Is this is one of the tickets

14 that was called while you were wearing Judge

15 Turner's robe?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. How do you know?

18 A. I recognize some of the writing on

19 the ticket.

20 Q. What writing do you recognize?

21 A. ONIC, Officer Not In Court. And

22 MCNS, Motion City Nonsuit.

23 MS. MUCHMAN: Exhibit 1 Bates stamp

24 6?
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1  THE WITNESS: Yes.

2  BY MS. BETHUNE:

3  Q. Can you tell me — so can you tell

4  me on Bates stamp Page 6 what the handwriting,

5  "FTA 8/11/16," what that means?

6  A. That's Failure to Appear. That's

7  something that Judge Rhodes wrote on the

8  previous court date, which is blurred out on

9  this copy, but at some time in July the person

10 failed to appear and he gave them an August

11 11th court date. And motion to vacate failure

12 to appear granted. Those were from July from

13 Judge Rhodes.

14 Q. Your handwriting is below that,

15 ONIC PNG HONS?

16 A. Not the PNG.

17 Q. Whose handwriting is that?

18 A. 1 don't know.

19 Q. And to the left of that under the

20 column, "Judge," it appears to say "8/11/16

21 Turner."

22 A. That looks like V. Turner. She

23 would have written that, or 1 don't know if

24 somebody else wrote the name, but I'm assuming
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1  she wrote it.

2  Q. Did you call this case when this

3  ticket was handed to you?

4  A. No, the clerk was calling the

5  cases.

6  Q. And the defendant was present?

7  A. Yes.

8  Q. And when it was dismissed did you

9  say that to the defendant?

10 A. After Judge Turner said that it

11 was dismissed, yes.

12 . Q. And after you wrote on the back of

13 the ticket on Bates stamp Page 6, what did you

14 do with this ticket?

15 A. Gave it back to Judge Turner.

16 Q. And what did she do with it?

17 A. Gave it to the clerk.

18 Q. And you mentioned that there were

19 three tickets that were given to you while you

20 were wearing Judge Turner's robe?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. And the third one, do you see that

23 anywhere in Exhibit 1?

24 A. No.
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1 Q. Do you remember who the defendant

2 was in that ticket?

3 A. No.

4 Q. And after the final ticket that

5 you saw, what happened?

6 A. Judge Turner sat back in the chair

7 and did the no show tickets.

8 Q. And what did you do?

9 A. I stood over by the clerk, and

10 after she did the tickets I looked at the back

11 of the tickets to see what she wrote on those

12 tickets.

13 Q. Did you take her robe off?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. You gave it back to her?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. And you did that where in the

18 courtroom?

19 A. On the bench.

20 Q. And after the call was over did

21 anyone approach you?

22 MR. COLLINS: You mean in that

23 courtroom?

24 BY MS. BETHUNE:
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1  Q. Yes.

2  A. Yes, Judge Laws.

3  Q. Okay. And why did Judge Laws

4  approach you?

5  A. She came in after Judge Turner had

6  already left. I was still looking at the no

7  show tickets that Judge Turner had completed.

8  And she said, "You've been reported." She told

9  me to wait for her upstairs.

10 Q. So Judge Turner left the courtroom

11 and you stayed?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. And Judge Laws spoke to you in the

14 courtroom?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. And after that did you go upstairs

17 to Judge Laws' office?

18 A. I went to my office. And then at

19 some point I walked around to her office to see

20 if she was back in there. She wasn't. And I

21 went back to my office. And then I was walking

22 down the hallway when she came upstairs.

23 Q. And what did she say to you at

24 that point?
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1  A. She said, "Why would you put your

2  career on the line?" I said, "I didn't know

3  that I was." And she said, "I have to report

4  this to the JIB and ARDC." And she said, "Do

5  not go into anymore courtrooms."

6  Q. And prior to that conversation,

7  before you left the courtroom when Judge Laws

8  approached you and she said, "You've been

9  reported," what was your reaction?

10 A. I'm sorry. I don't understand.

11 Reaction to what?

12 Q. You said that Judge Laws came into

13 the courtroom while you were still in there?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. And she told you that you've been

16 reported?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. What was your reaction to that?

19 A. I was shocked. I stayed there for

20 a few seconds while she was looking at the

21 tickets. She said, "We're going to have to

22 vacate all of these tickets." And I said to

23 her, "Judge Turner was here. She made all of

24 the rulings."
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1  And she asked me if I knew which

2  tickets they were and I picked out — I was

3  able to locate one of the tickets very quickly

4  because it was right on top. And then she told

5  me — that's when she told me to wait for her

6  upstairs.

7  And when she came and I was in the

8  hallway I said, "I did it," meaning that I

9  stepped up with Judge Turner.

10 Q. You told her, "I did it," in the

11 hallway?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. When Judge Laws told that you have

14 been reported did you know what that meant?

15 A. Well, I didn't know what the

16 specific report was, but I immediately knew

17 that it was because I went on the bench with

18 Judge Turner.

19 Q. And when you told Judge Laws

20 later, "I did it," how did Judge Laws respond?

21 A. She was angry, kind of animated.

22 And she was saying, "Why would you put your

23 career on the line?" I said, "I didn't know

24 that I was."
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1  Q. And other than August 11th have

2  you ever put on a judge's robe before?

3  A. At the store.

4  Q. Have you ever sat on a judge's

5  bench before?

6  A. No. Well, I may have sat up there

7  while the courtroom was empty while I was

8  looking at tickets or something, but not in

9  open court, no.

10 Q. Have you ever signed a judge's

11 name in any way before?

12 A. I haven't.

13 MR. COLLINS: She didn't say she

14 signed a judge's name here.

15 THE WITNESS: I never signed a

16 judge's name.

17 BY MS. BETHUNE:

18 Q. Have you ever written on any other

19 traffic tickets before?

20 A. Some of the no show tickets for

21 failure to appear.

22 Q. When would that be? When would

23 that have been?

24 A. Probably also in August.
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1  Q. On August 11th or in August? I

2  didn't hear you.

3  A. No, in August.

4  Q. And in what capacity were you

5  writing on these no show tickets?

6  A. The court call was over and the

7  judge told me to write, "Failure to Appear,"

8  for the people who didn't come in.

9  Q. And tell me what you think — what

10 judge were these no show tickets before?

11 A. I don't remember. I don't

12 remember.

13 Q. Was it just one time?

14 A. Yes. Yes.

15 Q. Tell me what you think of your

16 decision to put on Judge Turner's robe on

17 August 11th.

18 A. At the time I was there to learn,

19 and I thought she was just trying to teach me

20 how to handle some routine traffic tickets.

21 Q. Would you do anything differently?

22 A. Sure. Of course.

23 Q. What would you do differently?

24 A. Not do it. Not do any of it.
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1  Q. And what's your understanding of

2  the process of becoming a judge?

3  A. Well, there is a general election,

4  and then after the general election, a

5  swearing-in ceremony. And then go to new

6  judges school and get an assignment.

7  Q. So you understand that you're not

8  a judge until you've been sworn in?

9  A. Yes.

10 Q. And you take the oath?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. And you understand you don't have

13 authority to hear cases until you are a judge?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. Would you agree that anyone that

16 came in that courtroom and saw you wearing the

17 judge's robe and sitting on the bench might

18 think that you were, in fact, a judge?

19 A. If someone had walked in after she

20 had given me her robe and I was already sitting

21 up there, they might think that, but the people

22 who were already there when it happened, no.

23 Q. So you don't think that the

24 exchange of the judge's robe would be
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1  misleading at all?

2  A. I didn't think it was misleading.

3  I had been sitting there during the entire

4  call. The people saw her on the bench and they

5  saw me sitting on the side just taking notes.

6  Q. Do you understand that those

7  traffic tickets now have to be reheard or had

8  to be reheard?

9  A. I get —

10 MR. COLLINS: They've been

11 dismissed. They won't be redone.

12 BY MS. BETHUNE:

13 Q. How did you feel about that?

14 MR. COLLINS: And they weren't

15 traffic tickets.

16 THE WITNESS: They were traffic

17 tickets.

18 I'm sorry. Would you repeat your

19 question?

20 BY MS. BETHUNE:

21 Q. How did you feel that those

22 tickets had to be reevaluated by a judge?

23 A. I was, obviously, unhappy about

24 it.
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1  Q. I understand that you were

2  terminated from your position as a law clerk at

3  the Office of the Chief Judge; is that right?

4  A. Yes.

5  Q. Can you explain for me how you

6  lost your job?

7  A. I received a certified letter

8  telling me that I was terminated.

9  Q. I'm sorry, I couldn't quite hear

10 you.

11 A. I received a certified letter

12 telling me that I was terminated. I had to go

13 into the chief judge's office to talk to the

14 labor attorney, and the next day I was

15 terminated.

16 Q. And what day was that?

17 A. I'm not sure.

IB Q. So who did you speak to when you

19 went to the chief judge's office?

20 A. I have no idea. There were two

21 people, two attorneys.

22 Q. How long did this conversation

23 last?

24 A. Thirty minutes to an hour.
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1 Q. What type of setting was it?

2 A. A small conference room.

3 Q. So it was just you and two

4 attorneys in a conference room?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. And what kind of — what was the

7 conversation that you had?

8 A. Similar to the conversation that

9 we're having right now.

10 Q. And the next day you received a

11 certified letter that terminated your

12 employment?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. And what's your opinion about that

15 decision?

16 A. I don't know how to answer you.

17 I'm sorry. Disappointment.

18 Q. Do you think you did anything

19 wrong?

20 THE WITNESS: Can we take a break?

21 MR. VUCKOVICH: Sure. Take a

22 little break
•

23 MS. MUCHMAN: Sure.

24 MR. VUCKOVICH: For the record, the
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1  meeting they called a hearing was August 25th.

2  And then the letter was — they must have

3  deliberated a long time because the letter was

4  delivered on August 26th terminating her

5  employment.

6  MS. BETHUNE: Thank you.

7  (Whereupon a recess was

8  had.)

9  BY MS. BETHUNE:

10 Q. And we were just discussing your

11 opinion that you stated you were disappointed

12 about being terminated from your position as a

13 law clerk. Do you think you did anything

14 wrong?

15 A. No, but I do understand that I

16 made some mistakes.

17 Q. And why do you think you did not

18 do anything wrong?

19 A. I was following the request of the

20 judge. She was standing next to me the entire

21 time, but I do understand how it may have been

22 confusing to someone who was watching from the

23 outside.

24 Q. And are you aware of Rule 5.2 of
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1  the Rules of Professional Conduct that state

2  that a lawyer is still responsible for their

3  own conduct even if they're listening to a

4  superior?

5  A. Yes.

6  Q. Did you think that that applied in

7  this situation at all?

8  A. Oh, sure. I understand that I'm

9  responsible for what I did.

10 Q. And what is your plan regarding

11 your candidacy for judge in November?

12 A. I'm still on the ballot.

13 Q. And why are you still planning to

14 run?

15 A. To become a judge.

16 Q. Is there anything that you would

17 like to add for an inquiry panel that might

18 consider this matter?

19 A. Nothing that I haven't already

20 said. I understand that I made some mistakes,

21 a judgment error on my part, and I take

22 accountability for that.

23 MS. BETHUNE: Okay.

24 MS. MUCHMAN: May I ask some
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1  questions, Mr. Collins?

2  MR. COLLINS: Certainly.

3  EXAMINATION

4  BY MS. MUCHMAN:

5  Q. Miss Crawford, I apologize. I

6  think I call you Miss Turner before. I

7  apologize for that.

8  Tell us a little more about your

9  responsibilities as the law clerk for the

10 County.

11 MR. COLLINS: You mean at the

12 Markham courthouse?

13 BY MS. MUCHMAN:

14 Q. Well, in general before you —

15 even before you were transferred to Markham,

16 what were your job responsibilities?

17 A. It was mostly research and

18 writing, but anything that the judge asked me

19 to do.

20 Q. What type of assignments?

21 A. It varied. When I was downtown I

22 monitored the County Board meetings. There was

23 correspondence with the public. There were

24 things that had to go to AOIC from Judge Evans,
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1  so sometimes I had to prepare correspondence to

2  the AOIC.

3  Sometimes if I saw something that

4  — an Appellate Court opinion that was critical

5  of something to do with the Court, I might

6  bring that to the judge's attention and prepare

7  something for him.

8  If I saw something in the news, I

9  might also prepare something. I think there

10 was an incident once where someone requested an

11 interpreter and didn't get one. So it could be

12 any kind of issue that might come up concerning

13 the courts.

14 Q. And what were the responsibilities

15 in Markham?

16 A. The same responsibilities. I

17 didn't have to monitor the County Board

18 meetings, but the other responsibilities were

19 the same. Anything that the judges needed to

20 have done I would be responsible for.

21 And I would also monitor anything

22 that came up related to the Court. Sometimes

23 they would ask me to follow pending cases,

24 cases that were pending in the Appellate Court.
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1  Q. For what reason?

2  A. If there was a change in the law

3  that they needed to be aware of sometimes.

4  They had active cases that were pending that

5  were going to be decided. And if the Appellate

6  Court came down with a ruling that would affect

7  their pending cases, I might keep an eye on

8  that to let them know if the law changed or

9  stayed the same.

10 Q. Did you ever watch a case that

11 went up from a particular judge's courtroom to

12 see if the Appellate Court overturned any of

13 the trial judges, or that wasn't part of your

14 responsibilities?

15 A. There was a case that I was

16 monitoring, but 1 don't remember if the appeal

17 was from one of our judge's cases or just

18 because they had a pending case that was going

19 to be affected by the Appellate Court decision.

20 Q. What were your hours at the time?

21 A. 8:00 to 4:00, but 1 usually worked

22 — came in early, worked late.

23 Q. So average day, how many hours?

24 A. Well, 8:00 to 4:00 was required.
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1 Q. Yes, I understand.

2 A. But depending on what — usually

3 came in by 7:30 and I never left at 4:00. I

4 almost never left at 4:00. I usually — I

5 often left around 5:00, but sometimes I stayed

6 later.

7 Q. I'm sorry I missed it. Where do

8 you live?

9 A. Calumet City.

10 Q. Now, is it fair to say that your

11 job was for the court system, right?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. You were somewhat accountable to

14 the public?

15 A. Sure.

16 Q. You are also accountable to the

17 courts in that position, right?

18 A. Absolutely.

19 Q. And you have — if you're

20 corresponding with the County Board and the

21 AOIC, there's some confidentiality involved in

22 your work, right?

23 A. Sure.

24 Q. And also doing research for the
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1 judges, that's confidential as well?

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. And did you ever break that

4 confidentiality?

5 A. No.

6 Q. Would you say that your job

7 position required integrity?

8 A. Yes.

9 Q. What was your salary when you

10 started?

11 A. 44. Somewhere around 44 and

12 $47,000.

13 Q. What was your salary when you were

14 terminated in August of this year?

15 A. 54,000, I believe.

16 Q. That comes from the County budget?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. The research assignments that you

19 did for the judges, is there any other kinds of

20 assignments other than what you've described?

21 A. No. I set up the training classes

22 for the Lexis, but nothing that I haven't

23 already talked about.

24 Q. In Markham I heard you say it
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1  wasn't a promotion and it wasn't a demotion.

2  It was just sort of a lateral move?

3  A. Yes.

4  Q. Did it have anything to do with

5  wanting to be closer to home?

6  A. No, 1 didn't request the transfer.

7  Q. Who told you that you would be

8  transferred?

9  A. Judge Evans.

10 Q. What was your working relationship

11 with Judge Evans?

12 A. 1 worked directly for him. 1

13 reported to him. That was it.

14 Q. Did you ever have any problems

15 getting along with Judge Evans?

16 A. No.

17 Q. Would you say you had a good

18 working relationship with him?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. Did he ever criticize you in an

21 evaluation?

22 A. No.

23 Q. Is Judge Evans fair?

24 A. Yes.
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1 Q. So let's talk about law school for

2 a minute.

3 You were at Chicago Kent?

4 A. Yes.

5 Q. Who was your professional

6 responsibility instructor there?

7 A. I don't remember.

8 Q. Vivian Gross?

9 A. I remember her name.

10 Q. Richard Kling?

11 A. He was one of my professors, but I

12 don't think he taught professional

13 responsibility.

14 Q. When did you take the MPRE exam?

15 A. I don't know. I'm sorry.

16 Q. The ethics exam?

17 A. I don't remember if that's

18 something we took second year or third year.

19 Q. Did you pass it?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. The first time?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. What about the Illinois Bar exam?

24 A. Yes, I passed it the first time.
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1 Q. The first time?

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. What was your class rank when you

4 graduated from Kent, if you remember?

5 A. Maybe the top 52 percent, 54

6 percent. Something like that.

7 Q. Were you on a trial team at Kent?

8 A. I was never on the trial team, but

9 I did a certificate program, which was

10 litigation and alternative dispute resolution.

11 Q. Who was in charge of that?

12 A. I'm sorry.

13 Q. Judge Erickson?

14 A. I never met Judge Erickson. He

15 may have been in charge of the clinic, but I

16 don't know if he was in charge of a lateral

17 program.

18 Q. And was the certificate program.

19 that was something that you do in the three

20 years while you're in law school?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. Any other extracurricular actives

23 at Kent?

24 A. No.
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1  Q. So the certificate program in

2  litigation, tell us what's involved in that.

3  A. It was a program that we had to

4  apply for. And it was for people who were

5  interested in litigation.

6  We took — there were certain

7  classes that we would be required to take in

8  order to get the certificate like, trial

9  advocacy, mediation, and alternative dispute

10 resolution.

11 Q. Who was your trial ed teacher?

12 A. I don't remember.

13 Q. Did you ever have a 711 license

14 during law school?

15 A. Yes, I believe I did. Did they

16 automatically give that to us or did we have to

17 apply for it?

18 Q. It's a little form that you sign

19 and your supervising attorney signs.

20 Did you — who did you work for

21 when you had it? State attorney? Do you know

22 what I mean when I say 711?

23 A. I know what a 711 is, but I don't

24 remember —
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1  Q. So what it is? Tell me what it is

2  so I know we're talking about the same thing.

3  A. While we're in law school it's a

4  license that allows us to work with — under

5  the supervision of an attorney.

6  Q. And do cases before you pass the

7  Bar, right?

8  A. Some types of cases I believe were

9  allowed.

10 Q. So did you have a 711 license that

11 you used while you were in law school?

12 A. I didn't use it. I worked for the

13 Court, so I never tried cases. I worked for

14 the judge and I did some volunteer work, I

15 forgot about that, while I was in law school.

16 I did some volunteer work for the State's

17 Attorney's Office.

18 Q. And what kind of volunteer work?

19 A. I volunteered in the summer of

20 2001 for night narcotics, and mainly I helped

21 the lawyers to get ready for trial. They might

22 have us pull files. We sat in on witness

23 interviews to learn how to do witness

24 interviews. We sat in the courtroom during the
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1  call and gave attorney assistance, but I didn't

2  do any cases.

3  Q. So did you ever step up before the

4  bench while you were in law school?

5  A. No.

6  Q. And you understand that while in

7  law school and before you're licensed to be a

8  lawyer you need permission of the Illinois

9  Supreme Court and a supervising lawyer to step

10 up before the Court and say anything?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. Why do you think that is?

13 A. Because there is some professional

14 liability, responsibility associated with that

15 — with those.

16 Q. Any other reason?

17 A. I'm sure. Not that I can think of

18 right now.

19 Q. And what about — are law students

20 allowed to appear in court and say anything to

21 the judge handling a case? Let me rephrase

22 that question.

23 Are law students allowed to appear

24 in court and approach the bench on a case
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1 without a 711 license?

2 A. No.

3 Q. Why not?

4 A. It's not allowed. I mean, just

5 legally not allowed.

6 Q. Right. What do you need to be

7 before you can step up before the bench —

8 A. An attorney.

9 Q. — on a case.

10 Did you ever hear of a special

11 license for anyone to wear a robe and sit at a

12 bench under the supervision of another judge?

13 A. No.

14 Q. Is there a particular program that

15 you ever heard of where someone can wear a robe

16 and sit in court and hear cases behind the

17 bench?

18 A. No.

19 Q. Is there any formal — you called

20 it "shadowing." Is there any formal shadow

21 program for someone who is on the ballot to be

22 a judge?

23 A. Not a formal program, no.

24 Q. Do you — have you ever heard of
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1  any other person on the ballot to be a judge

2  sitting on the bench and having cases called

3  while a judge stands behind them?

4  A. I hadn't asked around about that.

5  Q. Have you ever heard of anyone else

6  doing what you did?

7  A. Not a candidate, but a police

8  officer, deputy, yes.

9  Q. Any lawyer?

10 A. No.

11 Q. Why do you think that is?

12 A. Because you have to be a judge to

13 hear cases.

14 Q. Why do you think that is?

15 A. There's notes, responsibilities

16 that come with that.

17 Q. How much did you spend on your

18 judicial campaign of your own money?

19 A. I don't recall the amount, but

20 most of the funding was my own money.

21 Q. Approximately?

22 A. 25 to $30,000.

23 Q. And where did you get the money?

24 A. My own savings.
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1  Q. You said that you had always

2  wanted to be a judge. What about it appeals to

3  you?

4  A. I worked for the courts and

5  respected the judges that I worked for.

6  Q. Can you tell me some of the

7  specific judges that you respected that you

8  worked for?

9  A. I respected all of them. Judge

10 Evans, Judge Maddux, Judge Laws. There were a

11 number of judges, but I respected all of them.

12 Q. So the days that you sat in court

13 and shadowed, how much of the day would be

14 spent shadowing the cases?

15 A. It varied depending on what else I

16 had to do, the number of cases that they were

17 handling. If there was a trial, sometimes I

18 might watch certain witnesses and not others.

19 It varied.

20 Q. An hour, two hours, three hours?

21 A. It varied. Sometimes it might be

22 a short 30-minute call, sometimes might be all

23 day.

24 Q. An all-day call?
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1  A. Yes.

2  Q. How many times was it an all-day

3  call?

4  A. Those were usually trials.

5  Q. Okay.

6  A. Probably watched two or three

7  trials in a summer. And I don't know how many

8  days of those trials there were.

9  Q. Possibly more than one day per

10 trial?

11 A. Sure.

12 Q. And at whose courtrooms were you

13 watching these trials?

14 A. Judge Flaherty had one trial in

15 particular over the summer that was

16 interesting. I've watched trials in — several

17 of the judges. I watched a trial that Judge

18 Pitman did. I saw Judge Panici do a trial.

19 That was before the election.

20 Some shorter bench trials in front

21 of Judge Boyd, Judge Brewer.

22 Q. So is it fair to say on the days

23 that you were watching these trials you weren't

24 doing the rest of your work?
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1 A. That's not fair because sometimes

2 I came in early. I often worked late and

3 worked during lunch.

4 Q. But if you —

5 A. Several breaks during the day.

6 But if I was in there all day, I probably

7 wasn't doing anything else.

8 Q. Did you take vacation time for

9 those days?

10 A. No.

11 Q. Were you like a regular government

12 job where you get paid when you're working and

13 when you're not working you're supposed to take

14 vacation time?

15 A. Sure.

16 Q.

1

Well, is that — don't tell me

17 "Sure." Is that true? I mean, did you have an

18 allotted number of vacation time?

19 A. Yes, I had.

20 Q. How many vacation days a year?

21 A. I don't know.

22 Q. You don't know?

23 A. I didn't keep track of the

24 vacation. I took very little vacation.
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1 Q. Well, how much vacation were you

2 allowed?

3 A. I think I accumulated about 10

4 days a year,  and there was sick time.

5 Q. And how much sick time?

6 A. I'm not sure.

7 Q. You don't know how much sick time

8 you were entitled to?

9 A. No, I didn't monitor it.

10 Q. If you were sick and you stayed

11 home you had to call into work, right?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. You got paid as long as you had

14 sick time?

15 A. Right.

16 Q. If you ran out of sick time you

17 didn't get paid, right?

18 A. Right.

19 Q. And if you took a vacation day you

20 had to call in — because you were on vacation

21 you had to call into work, right?

22 A. Correct.

23 Q. And take the time off?

24 A. Yes.
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1  Q. And you would get paid as long as

2  you had vacation time; is that right?

3  A. Yes.

4  Q. Who approved your sick and

5  vacation time?

6  A. When I was downtown, Judge Evans.

7  When I was in Markham, Judge Laws.

8  Q. And did you ever ask Judge Evans

9  for permission to shadow these judges in

10 Markham?

11 A. No.

12 Q. Did you ever ask Judge Laws for

13 permission to shadow the judges and not do work

14 for a whole day?

15 A. She told me when I -- after I won

16 the primary that I should go to all of the —

17 see all of the judges to see how they managed

18 their courtroom.

19 Q. Did she specifically tell you that

20 it was okay to sit there all day?

21 A. We never talked about times, but

22 she did specifically tell me that I should go

23 to see how all the different judges handled

24 their courtrooms.
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1  Q. So if I asked Judge Laws, do you

2  think she's going to tell me that she meant it

3  was okay for you to sit there a whole day and

4  not do any of your other work?

5  A. I'm not sure what she'll say, but

6  I --

7  Q. That's what you understood?

8  A. I checked in every day to let

9  people know where I was. If she wasn't there,

10 I would let one of the secretaries or the court

11 administrator know that I was going to be in a

12 specific courtroom.

13 Q. Did anyone ever complain that you

14 weren't getting your work done?

15 A. No.

16 Q. No one?

17 A. Not to me.

18 Q. Not your fellow attorneys?

19 A. No.

20 Q. So if you didn't do work, then

21 would the other — what was your job title?

22 A. Staff attorney.

23 Q. Staff attorney. Would the other

24 staff attorneys have to do your work?
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1  A. No. Anything that I was assigned

2  I had to manage.

3  Q. But if you weren't there to assign

4  it to, it would have gotten assigned to another

5  staff attorney, right?

6  A. I was always there, so if they

7  ever wanted me to do any work, I would do it.

8  I never refused any work. No one ever told me

9  that they were looking for me to do work and I

10 wasn't available.

11 Q. How did you get your assignments?

12 Did the judges come to your office?

13 A. It depended on the judge.

14 Sometimes they would come to my office,

15 sometimes they would call me and tell me on the

16 phone what they wanted me to do. Sometimes

17 they would call me and tell me to come to their

18 office. Sometimes they would put their things

19 in my mailbox.

20 Q. And this term "shadow," shadowing

21 the judges, that's your word, right?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. There is no formal shadow program

24 for judges who are on the ballot?
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1  A. No.

2  Q. Now, you said — you told us a

3  little bit about the process by which you

4  become a judge. What are the requirements to

5  become a judge?

6  A. Well, you have to be an attorney

7  and either be appointed or elected.

8  Q. And who, basically, decides

9  whether you're an attorney or not?

10 A. Attorney or judge?

11 Q. Attorney. Who gives you your law

12 license?

13 A. The Supreme Court.

14 Q. Who takes away your law license?

15 A. The Supreme Court.

16 Q. So you understand if you don't

17 have a law license then you can't be a judge?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. You told Ms. Bethune that you

20 thought it was clear, based on how things were

21 happening in the courtroom that you weren't a

22 judge. Can you explain that a little further,

23 please?

24 A. Well, I had been sitting in the
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1  courtroom for the entire call, and on more than

2  one occasion when people were told to step up

3  to the clerk they came over to me. I think

4  they thought I was the clerk.

5  When she handed me her robe, told

6  me to step up, it was in clear view of the

7  other people. She had been sitting up there

8  for the 20 or 25 minutes — 20 or 25 minutes

9  that the call was taking place in clear view of

10 everyone in the courtroom, so everyone knew

11 that she was the judge in the courtroom.

12 Q. And how would they have known you

13 weren't the judge?

14 A. Well, the village attorney had met

15 me many times.

16 Q. All right. So forget the village

17 attorney and the clerk and the judge. The —

18 how many people, members of the public were

19 sitting in the courtroom that day?

20 A. Three.

21 Q. The three people whose tickets

22 were called while you had on Judge Turner's

23 robes —

24 A. Yes.
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1  Q. — did anyone say, this is

2  Miss Crawford, she's not a judge?

3  A. No.

4  Q. Did anyone say, this is

5  Miss Crawford, she is shadowing Judge Turner,

6  or she's on the ballot?

7  A. No.

8  Q. Did anyone say anything to those

9  three people that you weren't a judge?

10 A. No.

11 Q. Did Judge Turner explain to those

12 three members of the public that she was just

13 letting you practice, I guess?

14 A. No.

15 Q. The exhibits, the packet of

16 exhibits that Ms. Bethune handed you marked

17 Exhibit 1, Bates stamp 1 through 6, had you

18 ever seen those before just now?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. When?

21 A. My attorney showed them to me. I

22 saw them earlier today. I may have seen them

23 on Friday.

24 Q. So when Judge Turner said to you
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1  — told you what to write down on the — let's

2  look at, for example, Exhibit 1 Bates stamp 2.

3  We call this a half sheet. Exhibit 1, Bates

4  stamp 2 is the half sheet?

5  A. No, the actual ticket. This is

6  the ticket.

7  Q. So when Judge Turner told you what

8  to write down on the ticket —

9  MR. VUCKOVICH: This is not one of

10 the ones she wrote on.

11 MS. MUCHMAN: Okay. Sorry. Thank

12 you, Adrian.

13 BY MS. MUCHMAN:

14 Q. Let's go to page 4 on the ticket

15 where it's — under where it says "Order

16 Entered," did she say that loud enough for

17 everyone to hear?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. And that would be the same,

20 according to what you're telling us, for

21 Exhibit 1 Bates stamp 6, she told you what to

22 write?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. You think everyone else heard her?
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1 A. They could have heard her. I

2 don't know if they actually did.

3 Q. I'm going to ask you a couple of

4 questions about Judge Turner.

5 You said you didn't know her other

6 than your seeing her in the Markham courthouse^

7 right?

8 A. Correct.

9 Q. You never socialized with her

10 before?

11 A. Never.

12 Q. Had there been some talk that

13 Judge Turner was referred to Lawyers'

14 Assistance Program? Did you hear that

15 anywhere?

16 A. After the incident.

17 Q. Have you — do you know why?

18 A. No.

19 Q. Have you heard any talk about why

20 Judge Turner was referred to LAP?

21 A. After. I heard afterwards that

22 she had been having some mental problems.

23 Q. Did you hear of what nature?

24 A. Just that she was forgetful, and
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1  at times was not showing up to work, and having

2  some hygiene issues.

3  Q. What kind of hygiene issues?

4  A. Not bathing. Looking disheveled.

5  Q. You had heard that before?

6  A. No.

7  Q. Had you ever heard anything about

8  her having a problem with drugs or alcohol?

9  A. Never. I still have never heard

10 anything like that.

11 Q. And on the day in question was

12 there anything that you observed about Judge

13 Turner?

14 A. Nothing that was out of the

15 ordinary.

16 Q. Nothing unusual? She didn't seem

17 disheveled?

18 A. I didn't think she was disheveled

19 that day. Her appearance was never the

20 neatest, but it wasn't something that I thought

21 was alarming. I just thought she didn't really

22 care about her appearance. That was what I

23 thought.

24 Q. So when you say "Not the neatest,"
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1  what do you mean?

2  A, She just didn't look very well put

3  together, is the term I would use. But I just

4  thought she didn't really care about how she

5  dressed too much. It was never anything

6  inappropriate that I saw.

7  Q. So when you say "not well put

8  together," her hair was messy or

9  A. It just wasn't very neat. She

10 didn't look as well-groomed as some other

11 people, but I see a lot of people who don't

12 particularly look very well groomed.

13 Q. So .it was nothing that you thought

14 was out of the ordinary?

15 A. No.

16 MR. VUCKOVICH: Especially since

17 she's been here.

18 MS. MUCHMAN: Mr. Collins did not

19 agree.

20 MR. VUCKOVICH: I was talking about

21 myself.

22 THE WITNESS: There was nothing

23 that I thought was concerning or unusual about

24 her. Her interactions were always appropriate.
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1  She was very pleasant.

2  BY MS. MUCHMAN:

3  Q. How long would you say you were

4  wearing that robe on August 11th, 2016?

5  A. Less than five minutes.

6  Q. And when you said that Judge

7  Turner went back on the bench and you gave her

8  back her robe, was that immediately when she

9  sat down you gave her back her robe or later?

10 A. Immediately.

11 Q. You said that when Judge Laws came

12 down to the courtroom and said, "You've been

13 reported," you said, "I immediately knew it was

14 because I was on the bench with Judge Turner."

15 How did you know that?

16 A. That was the only thing I could

17 have been reported for.

18 Q. So a part of you knew it wasn't

19 right?

20 A. No.

21 Q. Well then, how would you know that

22 that's what you were reported for?

23 A. The only other thing I did was sit

24 and observe. I wouldn't have been reported for
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1  that.

2  Q. So a part of you knew that it

3  wasn't right to put on the robe and sit behind

4  the bench?

5  A. I know that now.

6  Q. You didn't know that that day?

7  A. I didn't -- no.

8  Q. Really?

9  A. It was a spontaneous thing. I was

10 urged by the judge to put the robe on and step

11 up. And I was trying to learn from her and I

12 just thought she was trying to teach me how to

13 do some routine traffic tickets. They were all

14 petty offenses.

15 Q. But then I guess I just don't

16 understand how you can tell us that you

17 immediately knew it was because you were

18 sitting behind the bench if a little part of

19 you didn't know it was wrong to wear that

20 judge's robe and sit behind the bench.

21 A. There was nothing else besides me

22 observing the courtroom that I could have been

23 reported for.

24 Q. So a little part of you knew that
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1  that was wrong?

2  A. When Judge Laws came in the

3  courtroom I immediately knew that that was what

4  it was for.

5  Q. You told us that you understand

6  that you made some mistakes?

7  A. Yes.

8  Q. What are those mistakes that you

9  made?

10 A. Putting on the robe. Stepping up

11 on the bench.

12 Q. Sometimes I summarize Rule 5.2,

13 which is the supervisory order saying that

14 following orders is no excuse. Do you

15 understand what I mean when I say that?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. Do you think that's a fair summary

18 of your professional obligations as on

19 attorney?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. So just because a judge tells you

22 to do something does that make it okay?

23 A. No.

24 Q. Do you understand that what you
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1 did was embarrassing to the court system?

2 A. I do.

3 Q. Do you understand what you did was

4 embarrassing to Judge Evans?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. And Judge Laws?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. Now, you had a press conference

9 today at Mr. Collins' law office?

10 A. No.

11 MR. COLLINS: No.

12 THE WITNESS: Mr. Henderson.

13 Victor Henderson.

14 BY MS. MUCHMAN:

15 Q. At Mr. Henderson's law office?

16 A. Yes.

17 MR. COLLINS: Excuse me for

18 answering the question, but we did not have a

19 press conference.

20 MS. MUCHMAN: Off the record for a

21 second.

22 (Whereupon a discussion was

23 held off the record.)

24 BY MS. MUCHMAN:
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1  Q. What was the point of that press

2  conference?

3  A. To clarify things that had been

4  said in the media.

5  Q. And what do you think that

6  accomplished?

7  A. I think we clarified some things

8  that was said in the media.

9  Q. What kinds of things were you

10 trying to clarify?

11 A. That the judge was not in the

12 courtroom. That I was sitting on the bench for

13 two hours. That I was making rulings. Mainly

14 those kinds of things.

15 Q. I'm looking at, and unfortunately

16 I can't print it out right now, but I watched

17 the video of your press conference and I'm

18 looking at the Chicago Tribune's little blurb

19 about it from today.

20 And it says, "Fired law clerk says

21 judge urged her to take bench in shadowing

22 process."

23 That's pretty much what you told

24 us today, right, that the judge urged you to
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1  take the bench?

2  A. Yes.

3  Q. Does that change what you did?

4  Does that make it right?

5  A. No, it doesn't make it right.

6  Q. So what difference does it make

7  telling that to the press?

8  A. Well, the press story made it

9  sound like Judge Turner was on vacation and I

10 was sent in to rule over the Court.

11 Q. Really? I didn't see one press

12 story that said that. Can you —

13 A. Those weren't the words, but that

14 was the impression that I got from reading the

15 two or three stories that I read.

16 Q. I mean, isn't it fair to say what

17 you did is an embarrassment to the judicial

18 system as well?

19 A. It was embarrassing to me. I'm

20 sure it was embarrassing for the Court.

21 Q. And what good does having a press

22 conference do if this incident was already

23 embarrassing?

24 A. I think it clarified for people

WASHINGTON COURT REPORTING

312-286-7360

I2F SUBMITTED - 1799919024 - WMUCHMANARDC - 10/13/2016 04:27:03 PM  DOCUMENT ACCEPTED ON: 10/13/2016 04:34:12 PM

M.R.28341



9/22/2016

Page 95

1  that I was not sent in the courtroom to take

2  over the courtroom, and that no Judge was

3  present.

4  Q. And you apparently acknowledged

5  today that what you did caused a distraction

6  for the County's court system?

7  A. Sure.

8  Q. And you understand — I mean, it

9  says in here, too, you're aware that you're the

10 subject of a criminal investigation?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. Now, those three cases that you

13 heard, in every one of them there was a

14 defendant that stepped up to the bench, right?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. And did any of those defendants

17 have attorneys?

18 A. No. They were all petty offenses.

19 They very seldom come with attorneys. Those

20 people didn't have attorneys. And when the

21 attorneys would appear, they would be handled

22 at the beginning of the call.

23 Q. I think we already clarified this,

24 but you didn't know any of those defendants
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1 before, right?

2 A. I did not.

3 Q. So Judge Laws told you on August

4 11th that what you did put your career on the

5 line?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. What did you think she meant by

8 that?

9 A. That my professional career was in

10 jeopardy.

11 Q. What do you think as you sit here

12 today?

13 A. A lot of thoughts. It was a bad

14 decision that four or five minutes would change

15 the course of my career.

16 Q. Is there anything you would do

17 differently today?

18 A. Of course.

19 Q. Tell us what that is.

20 A. Not step up on the bench. Of

21 course, not put the robe on.

22 Q. I'm sorry?

23 A. Not put the robe on. And whenever

24 I was observing, just sit on the side and
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observe.

MS. MUCHMAN: I have nothing else.

MR. COLLINS: Thank you. We have

no questions.

MR. COLLINS: Wendy, is this a case

where we don't get a transcript or we can order

it?

MS. MUCHMAN: I don't see why you

can't — you can have the transcript.

MR. COLLINS: I'll let you know. I

don't want to order it right now.

(Which was and is all of the

matters heard in the above-

entitled cause on this date.)
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)  SS:

I, ANNETTE W. WASHINGTON,

certified Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public

for the County of Cook and State of Illinois,

do hereby certify that I reported in shorthand

the September 22, 2016 Sworn Statement of

RHONDA CRAWFORD, and that the foregoing is a

true and correct transcript of my shorthand

notes so taken as aforesaid, transcribed on the

26th day of September 2016.

Anhette 'W. ̂Wa^ingtoii
CSR 84-001004
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